JAMES P. SCANLAN
1527 30th Street, N.W., Apt. B-2
Washington, D.C. 20007
(202) 337-3927

January 14, 1998

CONFI DENTI AL

The Honor abl e Janet Reno

Attorney General of the United States
United States Departnent of Justice
10th Street & Constitution Ave., N W
Washi ngton, D.C. 20530

Re: Prosecutorial M sconduct by the Ofice of
I ndependent Counsel in United States of Anerica v.
Deborah Gore Dean, Crim No. 92-181-TFH (D.D. C.)

Dear Attorney Ceneral Reno:

Enclosed is a letter | delivered to I nspector General
M chael R Bromm ch on Decenber 23, 1997, in which | requested an
expedited investigation of the Departnment of Justice's handling
of allegations of prosecutorial m sconduct by attorneys of the
O fice of Independent Counsel Arlin M Adans in the prosecution
of United States of Anerica v. Deborah Gore Dean, Crim No. 92-
181-TFH (D.D.C.), that | nade in nmaterials provided to the
Departnment of Justice and White House Counsel Abner J. M kva
bet ween Decenber 1994 and March 1996. | had provided the
materials to the Department and Judge M kva in connection with
requests for an investigation of the Ofice of |ndependent
Counsel and for the renoval of Assistant Attorney CGeneral Jo Ann
Harris and other fornmer |ndependent Counsel attorneys from
positions in the Departnment of Justi ce.

In the letter to M. Brommi ch, | contended that Departnment
of Justice officials had failed to investigate the allegations of
prosecutorial msconduct in good faith out of concern that an
i nvestigation would reveal that certain |Independent Counsel
attorneys who went on to hold high positions in the Departnent of
Justice, including Assistant Attorney General for the Crimnal
Division, violated federal |aws through their actions in the Dean
case. As indicated in the letter to M. BromMch, in a letter to
Acting Assistant Attorney General John C. Keeney dated Cctober 6,
1997, | had previously expressed ny intention eventually to nake
such a claimto the Departnment's | nspector General, and in an
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ext ensi ve Freedom of Information Act request nmailed to the
Departnment on Novenber 24, 1997, | had sought information
relating to such claim The announcenent, also on Novenber 24,
1997, of the retirenent of Counsel for the O fice of Professiona
Responsi bility M chael E. Shaheen, Jr. caused nme to submt the
conplaint to M. Bromn ch before the end of the year, which
understood to be when M. Shaheen intended to | eave the
Departnment. M. Shaheen is one of the principal actors in the
Departnment of Justice's earlier handling of nmy allegations.

In my letter to M. Bromnvch, | also stated that | would
shortly be requesting the Attorney Ceneral to again exam ne the
conduct of the O fice of |Independent Counsel in the prosecution
of the Dean case, both because Department officials did not
previously consider the matter in good faith and because
devel opnents subsequent to the Departnment’'s |ast conmunication to
me on the matter provide independent justification for
reconsi deration of the earlier determ nation. Wthin the next
six weeks I will submt a detail ed account of those devel opnents.

Pl ease regard this letter, however, as a formal request that
you agai n consi der whether there exist grounds for renoval of
I ndependent Counsel Larry D. Thonpson, who succeeded Judge Arlin
M Adans in July 1995, and who has ratified the conduct of his
predecessor. | also request that you commence an investigation
of this matter immediately, w thout awaiting ny further
submi ssion. The information in the letter to M. Bromm ch
provi des anple basis for determ ning that the Departnent of
Justice did not previously consider this matter in good faith and
suggests that Departnent of Justice officials may thensel ves have
becone involved in I ndependent Counsel efforts to conceal the
nature of the conduct of Independent Counsel attorneys in
prosecuting the Dean case. The letter to M. Bromm ch al so
outlines sone of the devel opnents subsequent to the Departnent's
| ast comuni cation to ne on this matter.

Further, the defendant Deborah Gore Dean may be resentenced
at any tine in consequence of prosecutorial acts that nost people
woul d consi der outrageous governnment m sconduct and viol ati ons of
federal |law, notw thstanding M. Shaheen's representations that
t he Departnment of Justice did not so view them The events
described in the letter to M. BromM ch al ready suggest that the
Departnment del ayed in previously addressing ny allegations, and
| ater delayed in addressing the allegations of another
individual, with the expectation that rulings of courts not fully



The Honorable Janet Reno
Attorney General

January 14, 1998

Page 3

informed of the facts would facilitate the Departnent's efforts
to avoid addressing the allegations in a responsible manner.

In | arge nmeasure, however, the nature of Independent Counse
conduct in the Dean case is not a matter about which reasonabl e
people mght differ. Wile |I have previously discussed the
matter in terns of the Departnent's failure to adequately
i nvestigate credi ble allegations, investigation was hardly an
issue. The detailed materials | provided the Departnment in
Decenber 1994 and January 1995, assumng nerely that the factual
statenents therein were correct, by thensel ves denonstrated that
I ndependent Counsel attorneys, including persons who subsequently
hel d high positions in the Departnent of Justice, deliberately
and repeatedly violated their obligations as prosecutors and did
so as part of a calculated effort to deceive the jury and the
court concerning nunmerous issues. Those materials also indicated
that in all probability those attorneys violated federal |aws.

Further, | suggest that, fully informed of the facts, nost
menbers of the public would conclude that |ndependent Counsel
attorneys, including Ms. Harris and forner Deputy |ndependent
Counsel Bruce C. Swartz who is now Counsel to Acting Assistant
Attorney General John C. Keeney, endeavored to frane Deborah Gore
Dean with regard to the central claimin the Superseding
Indictnment--that Ms. Dean conspired with former Attorney Cenera
John N. Mtchell to cause the funding of certain noderate
rehabilitation projects in violation of HUD regul ati ons. And
they |ikely would reach that conclusion even if the events
addressed at such length in ny recent letter to M. Bromm ch had
never occurred. | suggest that nost nmenbers of the public would
al so conclude that this was nade clear to officials at high
| evel s of the Departnent of Justice approximately three years
ago. In any event, | suggest that the Department's prior actions
inthis mitter will eventually be viewed as at | east passive
conplicity in one of the viler episodes of abuse of power by
federal |aw enforcenent officials. Failure by the Departnment to
act expeditiously at this tine will only legitimte such
per ceptions.

As discussed in ny Decenber 23, 1997 letter to M. Brom ch,
because of the involvenent of the Ofice of Professional
Responsibility, the Ofice of the Deputy Attorney General, and
the Crimnal Division in the Departnent's prior handling of the
matter (as well as the involvenent of Bruce C. Swartz in the
underlying actions of the Ofice of |ndependent Counsel), |
suggest that reexam nation of whether there exist grounds for the
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renoval of the |Independent Counsel should be conducted by the
I nspector Ceneral .

The Decenber 23, 1997 letter to M. Bromwi ch may be found as
Attachnment 1 in the enclosed binder. At the end of the letter to
M. Bromwich is a list that cross-references the 33 attachnments
to the letter to M. Bromm ch to the sanme docunents, either in
hard copy or on diskette in WrdPerfect 6.0, as Attachnments 2
through 10 to this letter. Attachnments 11 and 12 are recent
letters by which | provided M. Bromwi ch corrections to the
Decenber 23, 1997 letter or its attachnents.

Shoul d the Departnment wi sh to di scuss any aspect of this
matter with ne, | can be reached during the day at (202) 887-
4453.

Si ncerely,

/s/ James P. Scanl an
Janes P. Scanl an
Encl osur es

cc: The Honorable Orin G Hatch
Chai r man
Senate Judiciary Commttee

The Honorabl e Henry J. Hyde
Chai r man
House Judiciary Commttee

M chael R Bromw ch, Esq.
| nspector General
(wi t hout encl osures)



